
MINUTES
SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday, March 10, 2025
TIME: 1:30 P.M.
PLACE: Room WW54
MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Chairman Lakey, Vice Chairman Shippy, Senators Ricks, Foreman, Lent, Lenney,
Keyser, Wintrow, and Ruchti

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

None

NOTE: The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

CONVENED: Chairman Lakey called the Senate Judiciary and Rules Committee (Committee) to
order at 1:30 p.m.

MINUTES
APPROVAL:

Senator Foreman moved to approve the Minutes of February 19, 2025. Senator
Ruchti seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

H 47 ADOPTIONS – Amends existing law to revise adoptee access to adoption
records. Vice Chairman Shippy presented the bill which made birth records
available to adoptees who were adopted prior to July 1, 2022, at 18 years old. Vice
Chairman Shippy introduced Representative Ehardt who presented the rest of the
bill. Representative Ehardt discussed that H 47 would open adoption records,
with the birth parents' names redacted to adoptees to reach out if they wanted.
She noted that the request for contact would go through the adoption agency and
the birth parents could decline.

TESTIMONY: Julianne Young, representing herself, testified in support of the bill as one of the bill
sponsors. She emphasized that this bill was not meant to impede on birth parents'
rights or privacy. She explained that H 47 would put in place a common sense
option for both the adoptees and the birth parents if they wished to communicate.
Ms. Young pointed out that every five years the adoptee could request contact
information on their birth parents, which could be accepted or denied.

DISCUSSION: Senator Wintrow asked for clarification on preferred anonymity for the birth
parents. Ms. Young clarified that the birth parents would be notified by the
Department of Vital Records if there was a request for contact, and the parents
could choose to release their names or not.

Senator Lent inquired further about the five-year contact request. Ms. Young
clarified that birth parents would only be contacted if the adoptee chose to go
through the process every five years but noted that was highly unlikely.

Representative Ehardt emphasized that this bill found a balance between
adoptees and their birth parents, as well as changing circumstances in their lives.

MOTION: Senator Lent moved to send H 47 to the floor with a do pass recommendation.
Senator Ricks seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote. Senator
Wintrow voted nay.

NOTE: Chairman Lakey moved RS 32561 up on the agenda due to Senator Nichols'
time restraints.



RS 32561 Relating to Repealing Chapter 43, Title 22 of Idaho Code entitled Weather
Modification District. Senator Nichols presented the RS 32561. This legislation
repealed Idaho Code Chapter 43, Title 22 that was established in the 1970s and
Senator Nichols explained that no one she talked to knew of its purpose. She
noted that she reached out to the Tax Commission, and they clarified that no one
had ever used the code.

MOTION: Senator Foreman moved to send RS 32561 to print. Senator Keyser seconded
the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

H 159 CHILD PROTECTIVE ACT – Order to prevent removal. Senator Lakey
presented the bill. He explained that the bill, in cases of imminent danger for a
child, would remove the offender from the home rather than the child. He yielded
the rest of his time to Andrew Ellis, Magistrate Judge. Mr. Ellis stated that he
worked in childcare law as his full-time job. He explained that all the references
to the Child Protective Act within statute were contradictory to each other. H 159
removed confusion and allowed for the removal of the offender instead of the child
from the home.

DISCUSSION: Senator Wintrow asked if an officer determined imminent danger, would the
perpetrator be removed not the child. Mr. Ellis clarified that these decisions had
not been made in the heat of the moment. The Department of Health and Welfare
and law enforcement would work together with a magistrate judge to ensure the
safety and legality of removal.

MOTION: Senator Wintrowmoved to send H 159 to the floor with a do pass recommendation.
Senator Keyser seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

H 185 IDAHO STATE POLICE – Amends existing law to revise provisions regarding
the Catastrophic Search Subaccount in the Search and Rescue Fund. Senator
Ruchti presented the bill. He explained that search and rescue units had used the
Search and Rescue Fund to reimburse efforts up to $4,000 that went beyond a
certain amount. H 185 would increase the reimbursable amount from $4,000 to
$8,000. Senator Ruchti noted that one line on the first page had not been changed,
so he requested the bill be sent to the 14th Order for possible amendment.

TESTIMONY: Kelly Brasfield, Idaho Association of Counties, testified in support of H 185. She
explained that the Association of Counties stood in support of search and rescue
efforts.

DISCUSSION: Chairman Lakey inquired how the reimbursement fund was funded. Ms. Brasfield
explained that it was funded by recreational vehicle registrations and a portion of
gas tax. Chairman Lakey asked for clarification that those fees were not increased
in the bill, only the amount that can be reimbursed. Ms. Brasfield affirmed.

TESTIMONY: Sheriff Chris Goetz, Clearwater County and the Idaho Sheriff's Association,
testified in support of H 185. He explained that anything reimbursed over the
initial $4,000 came out of the Catastrophic Fund which had a more arduous
process. H 185 changed that amount to $8,000. Sheriff Goetz emphasized that
immediate reimbursement was possible through the Search and Rescue Fund, not
the Catastrophic Fund.

DISCUSSION: Senator Wintrow asked for a review of where the funds came from and an example
of a reimbursable search and rescue cost. Sheriff Goetz explained that the money
came from gas tax, the highway vehicle fund, and fishing and game licenses. As an
example, if a hiker got lost and sent out an SOS for law enforcement to look for
him, this effort could be reimbursed. Sheriff Goetz clarified that if someone put
themselves in needless risk, then reimbursement could come from the individual,
not the Search and Rescue Fund.

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Monday, March 10, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



MOTION: Senator Ricks moved to send H 185 to the 14th Order for possible amendment.
Vice Chairman Shippy seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

RS 32586C1 Relating to a Concurrent Resolution Stating Findings of the Legislature and
Approving Pending Rules. Senator Lent explained that the RS 32586C1 codified
a rule rejection that changed the English language arts credit and replaced it with a
digital technology credit.

MOTION: Senator Ricks moved to send RS 32586C1 to print. Vice Chairman Shippy
seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

ADJOURNED: There being no further business at this time, Chairman Lakey adjourned the
meeting at 3:17 p.m.

___________________________ ___________________________
Senator Lakey Sharon Pennington
Chair Secretary

____________________________
Allison Boden
Assistant Secretary

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Monday, March 10, 2025—Minutes—Page 3


